
 
 
 

Board of Directors Meeting  
Monday, FEB 24, 2025 

Kitsap Public Facilities District Office 
Meeting Location: City of Bainbridge Island Council Chambers 
& vía Zoom Webinar – https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81597577085 

  
MEETING AGENDA 

 

 
1. Call to Order / Comments from Board Chairwoman Leedham 

 
2. Public Comment –If you wish to ask a question of the panelists, you will have a maximum of 3 minutes. 

Use the “Raise Hand” option within Zoom to speak, or put a message in the Chat Box, and the host will 
ask the question on your behalf. 

 
3. Approval of Consent Agenda 

Note: If a Board Member wishes to discuss any item, it may be pulled from the Consent Agenda for 
further dialogue and individual board vote for approval 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

A. DEC 16, 2024, KPFD BOD Meeting Minutes 
B. Blanket Voucher #01-JAN 2025 96968 Operating Expenses 
C. Blanket Voucher #02-JAN 2025 96977 PERC Project Invoices 
D. Blanket Voucher #03-FEB 2025 96968 Operating Expenses 
E. Blanket Voucher #04-FEB 2024 96977 POBCNW Project Invoice 
F. DEC 2024 & JAN 2025 Sales Tax Rebate Summary Reports 
G. EOY 2024 & JAN 2025 KPFD Financial Statements 
H. FEB 2025 KPFD Project Tracking Report   
I. JAN & FEB 2025 Executive Director Report 

 
 

4. 2025 Financial Outlook – Presented by Northwest Municipal Advisors 
 

5. POCEC Project Update – Presented by Mayor Putaansuu 
 

6. POB/CNW Project Update – Presented by Port Commissioner Strakeljahn 
 

7. General Business/Good of the Order 
• Update of WA State SAO 2021-2023 Audit 
• Update on House Bill 1109 – Extension of Sales & Use Tax Rebates 
• KPFD Policy Committee Update 

 
8. Meeting Adjournment 

 
Next Meeting: Monday, April 28, 2025 @ 5:30 PM 

Location: City of Poulsbo Council Chambers 
Topics: PERC Project Update & General Business  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81597577085


 
 

KITSAP PUBLIC FACILITIES DISTRICT 
CONSENT AGENDA 

FEB 24, 2025 
 

A. DEC 16, 2024, KPFD BOD Meeting Minutes 
B. Blanket Voucher #01-JAN 2025 96968 Operating Expenses 
C. Blanket Voucher #02-JAN 2025 96977 PERC Project Invoices 
D. Blanket Voucher #03-FEB 2025 96968 Operating Expenses 
E. Blanket Voucher #04-FEB 2024 96977 POBCNW Project Invoice 
F. DEC 2024 & JAN 2025 Sales Tax Rebate Summary Reports 
G. EOY 2024 & JAN 2025 KPFD Financial Statements 
H. FEB 2025 KPFD Project Tracking Report   
I. JAN & FEB 2025 Executive Director Report 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 



 

Building Communities, Enriching Lives  
 

Minutes of Board of Directors Meeting 
December 16, 2024, page 1 of 2 

Kitsap Public Facilities District 
 

Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting (Including optional "remote" element) 
 

Monday, December 16, 2024 
 

Attendance: 
 
Board Members Present: Chairwoman Erin Leedham, Vice Chairman Patrick Hatchel, 
Treasurer Walt Draper, Director Daron Jagodzinske, Director Phil Havers, Director Anne 
Blair 
 
Board Members Absent: Director Shawn Cucciardi 
 
Staff Present:  Executive Director (ED) Russ Shiplet 
 

1. Call to Order:  KPFD Chairwoman Leedham called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 
 
2. Public Comment: No public comment was given. 

 
3. Approval of Consent Agenda:  Treasurer Draper motioned to approve the Consent 

Agenda as presented.  Director Jagodzinske seconded the motion. There was no 
discussion, and the Board of Directors passed the motion unanimously.   

 
4. General Business:     

• KPFD Resolution 01-2024 – 2025 Board of Directors Meeting Schedule.  Director 
Havers moved to accept the resolution as presented.  Director Blair seconded the 
motion.  There was no discussion, and the motion passed unanimously.         
 

• KPFD Resolution 02-2024 – 2025 KPFD Holiday Schedule.  Director Havers moved to 
accept the resolution as presented.  Director Blair seconded the motion.  There was no 
discussion, and the motion passed unanimously.         
 

• KPFD Resolution 03-2024 – Appointing the Executive Director as the District Investment 
Officer for 2025.  Director Havers moved to accept the resolution as presented.  Director 
Blair seconded the motion.  There was no discussion, and the motion passed 
unanimously.         
 

• KPFD Resolution 04-2024 – Appointing the Executive Director as the District Public 
Records Officer for 2025.  Director Blair moved to accept the resolution as presented.  
Director Jagodzinske seconded the motion.  There was no discussion, and the motion 
passed unanimously. 

  



 

Building Communities, Enriching Lives  
 

Minutes of Board of Directors Meeting 
December 16, 2024, page 2 of 2 

         
 

• KPFD Resolution 05-2024 – Executive Director Voucher Approval Limit.  Director Havers 
moved to accept the resolution as presented.  Director Blair seconded the motion.  
There was no discussion, and the motion passed unanimously.  
        

• KPFD 2025 Budget Draft and Approval – Treasurer Draper reviewed the 2025 budget 
draft for the District’s operating expenses.  Executive Director salary and benefits were 
discussed, along with the consulting service contract line item for the District Board of 
Directors Handbook and Executive Director/Employee Handbook.  Director Havers 
motioned to approve the 2025 operating expenses budget as presented.  Director Blair 
seconded the motion.  There was no additional discussion, and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

• KPFD 2025 BKAT Service Contract – ED Shiplet presented the 2025 BKAT service 
contract to the Board for approval.  BKAT will provide recording services for all six 
District Board meetings. Director Draper moved to accept the service contract as 
presented.  Director Havers seconded the motion.  There was no discussion, and the 
motion passed unanimously. 
 

• KPFD 2025 MOXIE Services Solution Contract – ED Shiplet presented the 2025 MOXIE 
Service Solution contract to the Board for approval.  The contract is specific to 
completing the District Executive Director/Employee Handbook.  Director Jagodzinske 
moved to accept the service contract as presented.  Director Blair seconded the motion.  
There was no discussion, and the motion passed unanimously. 
 

• WA State Auditors Office Tri-Annual Annual Audit—ED Shiplet discussed the progress 
of the audit. All requested materials have been submitted, and it is anticipated that the 
audit will be complete by January or early February 2025. 
 

• KPFD Policy Committee Update – The District Policy Committee update was covered in 
the 2025 MOXIE Services Solution discussed.      
 
 

5. Meeting Adjournment: 
• The Board of Directors meeting adjourned at 5:57 PM. 

  
Next Meetings of the Board: 

  
 Monday, February 24, 2025 – Bainbridge Island Council Chambers 

 
• Port Orchard Community Events Center (POCEC) project update 



  
 

 
BLANKET VOUCHER APPROVAL  FUND: 96968.00968  BV# 01-JAN 2025 
 
We, thus undersigned of Kitsap Public Facilities District, Kitsap County, Washington, certify that the 
merchandise or services hereinafter specified have been received and that the following vouchers 
are approved for payment of $32,410.74 on this 29th day of JAN 2025    
 
 

Patrick Hatchel  
Pat Hatchel, Chair 

Erin Leedham    
Erin Leedham, Vice-Chair 

Walter S Draper IV 
Walter Draper IV, Treasurer 

Daron Jagodzinske 
Daron Jagodzinke, Director 

Phil Havers      

Phil Havers, Director 

Shawn Cucciardi    

Shawn Cucciardi, Director 

   

Anne Blair 
Anne Blair, Director 
 

  

VENDOR  INVOICE # AMOUNT 
INVOICES:    
Kitsap Bank Visa CC (DEC 2024)  DEC2024 $ 5,834.43 
Moxie Support Services (DEC 2024)  1077 $ 1,500.00 
DRS PERS2 Employee Retirement Fund (JAN 2025)  4296P $ 1,791.46 
Barker Creek Consulting (JAN 2025)  1558 $ 1,407.50 
Assoc. of WA State PFDs Annual Dues (2025)  2025 $ 750.00 
Dept of Commerce (PERC Project Feasibility Review)  411693 $ 15,000.00 
JPC PLLC Legal Counsel (JAN 2025)  178684 $ 440.00 
WA State Auditor’s Office (2021-2024 Audit)  L166020 $ 2,156.05 
Parker Mooers & Cena (DEC 2024)  47118 $ 1,620.00 
Greater Kitsap Chamber (2025 Dues)  378569 $ 350.00 
    
    
Q4 2024 Board of Directors Stipend – Erin Leedham  Q42024 $ 320.89 
Q4 2024 Board of Directors Stipend – Patrick Hatchel  Q42024 $ 284.30 
Q4 2024 Board of Directors Stipend – Walt Draper IV  Q42024 $ 299.18 
Q4 2024 Board of Directors Stipend – Daron Jagodzinske  Q42024 $ 101.34 
Q4 2024 Board of Directors Stipend – Phil Havers  Q42024 $ 166.21 
Q4 2024 Board of Directors Stipend – Shawn Cucciardi  Q42024 $ 65.41 
Q4 2024 Board of Directors Stipend – Anne Blair  Q42024 $ 323.97 
    
    
PAGE TOTAL   $ 32,410.74 

    
 
  



 
 
 

VENDOR  AMOUNT 
Kitsap Bank Visa (DEC 2024)                                                                                  $5,834.43  
-Comcast for Business (DEC 2024 Phone Service)  ($73.62) 
-Comcast for Business (DEC 2024 Internet Service)  ($245.21) 
-Office Rent (DEC 2024)  ($921.45) 
-Help Desk Cavalry Monthly IT Support (DEC 2024)  ($288.44) 
-Help Desk Cavalry Email Support (DEC 2024)  ($267.48) 
-Glacier West Storage (DEC 2024)  ($133.00) 
-Zoom Webinar (DEC 2024)  ($104.93) 
-Adobe Cloud Storage (DEC 2024)  ($65.51) 
-Kitsap Sun (DEC 2024)  ($16.99) 
-Exact Hosting – Domain Renewal (2025)  ($80.00) 
-Grammarly Annual Renewal (2025)  ($157.39) 
-Staples – Printer Toner & Office Supplies (DEC 2024)  ($160.76) 
-Help Desk Cavalry Tech Refresh (2205-2028)  ($3,319.65) 
   
 PAGE TOTAL $5,834.43 
   
   
   
   
   

 



  
 

 
BLANKET VOUCHER APPROVAL  FUND: 96977.00977  BV# 02-JAN 2025 
 
We, thus undersigned of Kitsap Public Facilities District, Kitsap County, Washington, certify that the 
merchandise or services hereinafter specified have been received and that the following vouchers 
are approved for payment of $127,340.32 on this 2nd day of JAN 2025    
 
 

Patrick Hatchel  
Pat Hatchel, Chair 

Erin Leedham    
Erin Leedham, Vice-Chair 

Walter S Draper IV 
Walter Draper IV, Treasurer 

Daron Jagodzinske 
Daron Jagodzinke, Director 

Phil Havers      

Phil Havers, Director 

Shawn Cucciardi    

Shawn Cucciardi, Director 

   

   

VENDOR  INVOICE # AMOUNT 
INVOICES:    
Poulsbo Events & Recreation Center (PERC) Project  33119820-01  
-PERC Design/Grant Task 1 (AUG 2024)  - $ 1,951.80 
-PERC Design/Grant Task 1 (SEP 2024)  - $ 10,907.10 
-PERC Design/Grant Task 1 (OCT 2024)  - $ 69,603.51 
Poulsbo Events & Recreation Center (PERC) Project  33119820-02  
-PERC Design/Grant Task 1 (NOV 2024)  - $ 31,399.96 
-PERC Design/Grant Task 1 (DEC 2024)  - $ 13,477.95 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
PAGE TOTAL   $ 127,340.32 

    
 
 



  
 

 
BLANKET VOUCHER APPROVAL  FUND: 96968.00968  BV# 03-FEB 2025 
 
We, thus undersigned of Kitsap Public Facilities District, Kitsap County, Washington, certify that the 
merchandise or services hereinafter specified have been received and that the following vouchers 
are approved for payment of $11,769.49 on this 14th day of FEB 2025    
 
 

Patrick Hatchel  
Pat Hatchel, Chair 

Erin Leedham    
Erin Leedham, Vice-Chair 

Walter S Draper IV 
Walter Draper IV, Treasurer 

Daron Jagodzinske 
Daron Jagodzinke, Director 

Phil Havers      
Phil Havers, Director 

Shawn Cucciardi    
Shawn Cucciardi, Director 

   

Anne Blair 
Anne Blair, Director 
 

  

VENDOR  INVOICE # AMOUNT 
INVOICES:    
Kitsap Bank Visa CC (JAN 2025)  JAN2025 $ 2,759.42 
Moxie Support Services (JAN 2025)  1080 $ 825.00 
DRS PERS2 Employee Retirement Fund (FEB 2025)  4296P $ 1,792.57 
JPC PLLC Legal Services (JAN 2025)  180805 $ 467.50 
Barker Creek Consulting (FEB 2025)  1569 $ 925.00 
KEDA Annual Partner Investment (2025)  KPFD 2025 $ 5,000.00 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
PAGE TOTAL   $ 11,769.49  

    
 
  



 
 
 

VENDOR  AMOUNT 
Kitsap Bank Visa (JAN 2025)                                                                               $ 2,759.42 
-Comcast for Business (JAN 2025 Phone Service)  $ 73.62 
-Comcast for Business (JAN 2025 Internet Service)  $ 260.02 
-Office Rent (JAN 2025)  $ 921.45 
-Help Desk Cavalry Monthly IT Support (JAN 2025)  $ 288.44 
-Help Desk Cavalry Email Support (JAN 2025)  $ 267.48 
-Glacier West Storage (JAN 2025)  $ 133.00 
-Zoom Webinar (JAN 2025)  $ 104.93 
-Adobe Cloud Storage (JAN 2025)  $ 65.51 
-Kitsap Sun (JAN 2025)  $ 16.99 
-Grammarly Annual Subscription (2025)  $ 157.39 
-Exact Hosting Domain Renewal (2025)   $ 68.64 
-Microsoft Annual Subscription Renewal (2025)  $ 109.29 
-Walmart – Office Supplies  $ 54.52 
-Amazon – Desktop Docking Station  $ 238.14 
   
 PAGE TOTAL $ 2,759.42 
   
   
   
   
   

 



  
 

 
BLANKET VOUCHER APPROVAL  FUND: 96977.00977  BV# 04-FEB 2025 
 
We, thus undersigned of Kitsap Public Facilities District, Kitsap County, Washington, certify that the 
merchandise or services hereinafter specified have been received and that the following vouchers 
are approved for payment of $143,900.00 on this 1st day of FEB 2025    
 
 

Patrick Hatchel  
Pat Hatchel, Chair 

Erin Leedham    
Erin Leedham, Vice-Chair 

Walter S Draper IV 
Walter Draper IV, Treasurer 

Daron Jagodzinske 
Daron Jagodzinke, Director 

Phil Havers      

Phil Havers, Director 

Shawn Cucciardi    

Shawn Cucciardi, Director 

   

   

VENDOR  INVOICE # AMOUNT 
INVOICES:    
Port of Bremerton Annual Reimbursement  FEB2025 $ 143,900.00 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
PAGE TOTAL   $ 143,900.00 

    
 
 



Kitsap Public Facilities District
Sales Tax Rebate Revenue Summary

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

A AA AB AC AD AE AF AG AH AI AJ AK AL AM AN AO AP AQ AR AS

FY 2016 % FY 2017 % FY 2018 % FY 2019 % FY 2020 % FY 2021 % FY 2022 % FY 2023 % FY 2024 % POS/NEG

JAN 105,695.31$       10.5% 113,891.57$       7.8% 123,476.10$       8.4% 144,263.78$       16.8% 150,304.56$       4.2% 158,789.57$      5.6% 178,674.01$       12.5% 187,086.78$        4.7% 185,558.93$        -0.8%

FEB 140,524.01$       11.5% 147,253.14$       4.8% 159,064.82$       8.0% 165,509.56$       4.1% 173,706.66$       5.0% 192,717.28$      10.9% 197,557.85$       2.5% 209,039.13$        5.8% 213,924.96$        2.3%

MAR 96,088.48$         6.2% 105,943.80$       10.3% 123,918.31$       17.0% 125,924.98$       1.6% 132,155.73$       4.9% 144,739.20$      9.5% 162,359.33$       12.2% 167,293.61$        3.0% 174,240.58$        4.2%

APR 100,040.83$       10.9% 104,854.91$       4.8% 118,939.87$       13.4% 116,815.21$       -1.8% 115,731.99$       -0.9% 141,495.24$      22.3% 167,540.61$       18.4% 167,784.23$        0.1% 170,727.31$        1.8%

MAY 119,621.40$       11.7% 126,859.08$       6.1% 144,926.19$       14.2% 150,430.71$       3.8% 126,061.95$       -16.2% 188,771.05$      49.7% 201,423.66$       6.7% 197,898.50$        -1.8% 197,130.98$        -0.4%

JUN 114,550.72$       11.1% 113,282.72$       -1.1% 133,121.83$       17.5% 145,401.79$       9.2% 126,133.58$       -13.3% 177,293.20$      40.6% 190,292.70$       7.3% 186,576.31$        -2.0% 193,884.02$        3.9%

JUL 114,395.94$       5.2% 126,579.00$       10.6% 146,892.10$       16.0% 150,399.47$       2.4% 165,292.17$       9.9% 192,556.37$      16.5% 193,483.26$       0.5% 203,055.00$        4.9% 204,152.01$        0.5%

AUG 128,801.45$       5.6% 142,050.14$       10.3% 158,152.03$       11.3% 166,341.19$       5.2% 170,988.07$       2.8% 204,719.00$      19.7% 207,417.76$       1.3% 213,155.55$        2.8% 209,083.96$        -1.9%

SEP 124,100.96$       4.8% 129,254.90$       4.2% 149,561.17$       15.7% 157,155.89$       5.1% 167,577.17$       6.6% 186,898.42$      11.5% 200,317.82$       7.2% 202,596.57$        1.1% 215,398.30$        6.3%

OCT 126,066.16$       12.9% 132,996.09$       5.5% 151,329.82$       13.8% 158,503.52$       4.7% 163,033.80$       2.9% 182,058.47$      11.7% 204,071.35$       12.1% 198,061.74$        -2.9% 207,683.24$        4.9%

NOV 132,038.42$       9.0% 139,824.46$       5.9% 149,568.79$       7.0% 161,955.86$       8.3% 184,238.07$       13.8% 197,714.69$      7.3% 208,743.30$       5.6% 213,410.30$        2.2% 210,522.08$        -1.4%

DEC 117,143.86$       6.5% 124,461.85$       6.2% 148,700.48$       19.5% 148,546.73$       -0.1% 164,199.11$       10.5% 177,670.52$      8.2% 192,632.39$       8.4% 191,416.42$        -0.6% 203,753.62$        6.4%

YTD TOTAL 1,419,067.54$    8.8% 1,507,251.66$    6.2% 1,707,651.51$    13.3% 1,791,248.69$    4.9% 1,839,422.86$    2.7% 2,145,423.01$   16.6% 2,304,514.04$    7.4% 2,337,374.14$     1.4% 2,386,059.99$     2.1%

MONTHLY AVG 118,255.63$       8.8% 125,604.31$       6.2% 142,304.29$       13.3% 149,270.72$       4.9% 153,285.24$       2.7% 178,785.25$      16.6% 192,042.84$       7.4% 194,781.18$        1.4% 198,838.33$        2.1%

NOTE:  Sales tax rebate numbers show for the month are funds

received from the State Treasurer's Office.

Kitsap County receives sale tax rebates two months after tax paid. 

 i.e. County/PFD March receipt reflects January sales tax revenue

DEC 2024

Debt Service (286)

Sales Tax Rebate (977)

COMMENT

6.4% increase from DEC 2023

FUNDS

$203,753.62

($71,295)

Interest Earned $8,225.02

DEC 2024 Rebate Revenue Summary



KPFD Sales Tax Rebate Report
JAN 2025















KPFD Project Invoice Tracking Report
FEB 2025



 

 

 

FEB 24, 2025 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
JAN & FEB 2025 

 

• The WA State Audit for 2021-2023 is still on-going, but all requested financial 
documents have been submitted.  We are awaiting a date for the end-of-report and 
recommendations meeting, which should occur the end of February or early March.  
All board members are invited to attend.  Details will be sent out once the meeting is 
scheduled. 
 

• The KPFD Board of Directors Handbook has been broken up into three major 
sections: Board Essentials, Roles & Responsibilities, and Ploicies & Procedures.  
The Policy Committee met in mid-Febraury to cover the first-half of Board 
Essentials.  A second meeting will take place in early March to review the second-
half of Board Essentials, with plans to take it’s recommendations to the Board in 
April BOD meeting.   
 

• PERC Project Update: A meeting was held with the City of Poulsbo to discuss 
progress of the PERC project.  Design is nearing 30% competition.  The City is still 
planning to issue the construction bond in 2025, and the PFD debt service 
payments will commence in January 2026.  The City still believes they will be under 
contract for the construction of the PERC by the ILA expiration date of December 31, 
2025. 
 

• POCEC Project Update: The City of Port Orchard is working to garner funding needed 
for the improvements on Bay St.  Construction of the new Kitsap Bank headquarters 
is delayed until the Bay St. improvements are complete.  Estimates for construction 
of the POCEC project may not begin until late 2026 or early 2027.  The current ILA is 
set to expire on December 31, 20125, and will need to be amended to adjust for the 
new timeline of construction. 
 

• PGFHP Project Update: The Port Gamble Forest Heritage Park project is waiting for 
final permitting to construction the northern point of the trailhead (Port Gamble) 
parking lot.  There has also been public concern expressed about the location of the 
parking lot, and an amendment to the current ILA may need to extend the deadline 
date of June 30, 2025 ot December 31, 2025. 



 

 

 
• House Bill 1109 – Extension of Sales and Use Tax Rebates through 2065 has passed 

through the House Finance Committee, and is now over to the House Rules 
Committee.  If it passed through the Rules Committee it will go to the House Floor 
for a vote.  If it passes through the House Floor, it goes to the Senate Ways & Means 
Committee, the Senate Rules Committee, and the Senate Floor for vote. 
 
 



��������	
���������������������������������������������� ��!�"



��������	�
	��������������������������������������������� ��!��"�#������������"��"�#�$������!�"%��&!'('!)��*���!��$������!�"%� +



���������	
���������
�

������ ������������ ��!�"#$%#"&"%'(�)�*�� +,��� ��*��- ��.�/�(�0��� "1�231&3&4������ "1�5612&24����������7*���� ��8��*9*: 5"1"%2��������������.�����(�)�*�� "1%;21�&24������ "1�5612&24����������8/<�* � +=<����9*:�8/<�* � ";21$%34��������� �%&1&&&4���������������>?�*� ����@9� �<�A��*�>�!���B�*����C�0��,��)9�� 2;31"�3����������� 2;31"�3�����������������>?�*� ����A9�>��!������=��D����!����=A8A 61$3"���������������� 65%126������������������>?�*� ����A9�>��!����� 0��!����8(A E������������������������ E�����������������������������>?�*� ����@9� �<�A��*�>�!����FG� %%512""����������� %$;163������������������>?�*� ����������!�B��?����*�!���AHI $%�15&&����������� $%�15&&���������������.�����8/<�* � $1;6�1"334������ "1�;"166"4����������AD�*:��9*�J�*��B���*�� ;"61&%"4��������� "�1"634���������������B�:9**9*:�J�*��B���*�� �12&612""4������ �12&612""4����������8*�9*��J�*��B���*�� %16�&123%4������ �12"51&;24����������

KLKM



��������	
����������������
����������������� �!�"�#$� �%���&����$�'��"&()*+,-.//�012)2���3��!��$�4 %�%�5�������!$ 6�)�78%$���9�#�4��$�:.;�<=<-��$��>$#? $!�&�44��%�@��������&����$�'�>&�&()*.<//�012�)*A,+//��3�3��!��$�4 %�%�5�������!$ 6�)�78%$���9�#�4��$�:.;�<=<B)*C,BDC//�1����$��3�0�������$��E 4����F�$%� 5��� $G�'�EF�()*<,=D+//�012)*-C+H��3�3��!��$�4 %�%�5�������!$ 6�)�78%$���I����:=;�<=<B��$���3�J$�4�$����'�>J()*.,D:A//�012)*.D:;A==���%�5�8 %!� ��� ��@�3$�4�<=<<K:. D



����������	
��
���������������������������������������������� �!�"�#����$��%�&�'����������(�������)�*!������+��������*!�����)�,�-������.���������.��)��/'�0��/�'1�2��/��3�1��.������.�-4�5������3���4

�

�(�����.��)����&���4����������3������+6�������7(3*30�7*"30�7$870���.�7(1��������������+���������9�3&��)�����:���7�������0�*�.��)�;�.�1������<=>=?@=�ABC?D= EFGHI JK=>LM@N�JKMO=PQNRST=?ULQ@K=�ABC?D= VFGHI WXAAY�XZRAY�[X<RA\Z]RVÊ_V C̀a=N�C?U�bN=�cCS�<=dCQ= e?Q=K=NQ�RCK?L?DN cMQCa�<=>=?@=N fT=KCQL?D�RST=?N=N [=Q�<=>=?@=�g>CLaCda=�hMK�fQB=K�i=dQ�=̀K>LP= cMQCa�A@KK=?Q�i=dQ�̀=K>LP= <=>=?@=�g>CLaCda=�hMK�ejg�JCkl=?QN JCkl=?QN gPQ@Ca�JCkl=?QN JKMO=PQ=U�JCkl=?QN jfe�<=m@=NQ nopqrps�tuvouwx gPQ@Ca�JCkl=?QN i=NLD?�JBCN=�JKMO=PQ=U�JCkl=?QN AM?NQK@PQLM?�JBCN=�JKMO=PQ=U�JCkl=?QN gPQ@Ca�JCkl=?QN JKMO=PQ=U�JCkl=?QN gPQ@Ca�JCkl=?QN JKMO=PQ=U�JCkl=?QN cMQCa�ejg�JCkl=?QN ABC?D=�L?�[=Q�JMNLQLM? R?U�Mh�]=CK�gUO@NQl=?QN R?UL?DZ@?U�yCaC?P=EHVG zVY_H{Y{G_ zVY_H{Y{G_ zVE{Y|{E zVYV}|YGVV z~�GY|�} z_V_YG{{ zH z_V_YG{{EHV� VY{V|YH�~ VY{V|YH�~ VVVY}~E VY_H}YE~� ~�_Y~V} {{_Y{�| H {{_Y{�|EHV} VYGH}YEGE VYGH}YEGE V_EYH}E VY_}GYV~H ~�_Y}|~ GVVY_~E _VGYHHH _VGYHHH V|�Y_~EEHV~ VY}H}Y�GE VY}H}Y�GE V_}Y|~| VYG�|Y��_ ~�HY{E~ }H|YE_G �HYHHH �HYHHH �{|YE_GEHV| VY}|VYE{| G~Y~H{ VY~GHYHGE EH�Y�{G VY�{_Y{H} ~�HY_E| }~_YH}| EG~Y{VV EG~Y{VV GE{Y��~ _YV|_Y|VVEHEH VY~_|Y{E_ E}Y�H~ VY~�}YH_V V�GY_|G VY}HVY�_� ~G|Y_}} ~{EYEG| �HYH|� H ������� E}YV_� E{_Y~~| __VYVEV GVVYV_~ WH\ _Y}HGYH{~EHEV EYV{GY{E_ VVY{GH EYVG�Y~}_ E�VY{_| VY~|GY{_{ ~}HY}_V VYHE{Y}H_ VY_E�YE|H H ��������� VEHY||{ H V}EYV~E H VY�V|Y{�� WG|{Y}�E\ W_\ _YVVHYE~_EHEE EY_H{YGV{ _VY_H{ EY__GY~V~ E|HY}~} EYH{GYH_V ~V~YG�G VYEE�Y{�� GEVYVH| H ������� _�Y~~| H �_EYGVE H V{_Y|HH H VY__{Y{VH WVH}Y|{{\ W||\ _YHHEYE_|EHE_ EY__}Y_�� ~{YV}V EY{EVYG_} E}EY}VH EYV{~Y~E} ~}�YE_| VYE}EYG~~ E~}Y�GE H ������� VEYVG{ EGY_HH H V{_Y|HH H {�|YHHG ~H_YG~E V _Y~HGY~EEEHE{ EY_~�YH�H |EYE{| EY{}~Y_H| E}~YV{� EYEHHYV�E ~}�YE_� VY_E_Y|E� GYV�E H ������� H {{|Y~EE H V{_Y|HH H G|~Y~~{ }EGYH{E _YG�G {YG_{Y{E|EHEG ��������� ��������� ������� WV\ ��������� ~}�YVE| ��������� H ������� ���������� VE}Y_{H ��������� H }�}Y}{V V{_Y|HH H ��������� ����������� EY~H~YV~HEHE� ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� |HY_{H ��������� V{_Y|HH ������� ��������� {Y}~VY~}�EHE} ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� �}YHH� ��������� V{_Y|HH ������� ��������� �Y~_}YH|GEHE~ ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� �}YHHH ��������� V{_Y|HH ������� ��������� ~Y|GEYHH}EHE| ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� ��Y||| ��������� V{_Y|HH ������� ��������� VVYVE~YV{{EH_H ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� ��Y||� ��������� V{_Y|HH ������� ��������� V_Y_�}YH~�EH_V ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� ��Y||} ��������� V{_Y|HH ������� ��������� VGY�}HY{{�EH_E ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� �}YHH{ ��������� � ��������� V~YV~_Y}}{EH__ ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� �}YHHV ��������� � ��������� EHY}�{Y~~_EH_{ ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� �}YHHE ��������� � ��������� E_Y{VGYGVVEH_G ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� ��Y||| ��������� � ��������� E�YV_}Y{GHEH_� ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� �}YHH{ ��������� � ��������� E~Y|_EYGE�EH_} ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� ��Y||| ��������� � ��������� _VY~HEY�E}EH_~ ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� ��Y||� ��������� � ��������� _{Y}{|Y�~HEH_| ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� �}YHH� ��������� � ��������� _}Y}}GY�{~EH{H ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� ��Y||~ ��������� � ��������� {HY~~EYG}�EH{V ��������� ��������� ������� ��������� �}YHH_ ��������� � ��������� {{YH}EYGE|z�|Y}}VYG�| z_HGYG~� z}HYH}}YVGG z}Y�_�Y}H� zVHYG~�Y|�} z_VGYHHH ����������� z~Y~GVYHE~

[MQ=��̀QK=NN�c=NQ�dk�PBC?DL?D�T=KP=?QCD=N�CdM>=

zVY�|}YV}E zEYH{}YGG�zEY}|HYHHH

������������� JQF�fKPBCKUWJfARA\ JM@aNdMWJR<A\ XLQNCT�AM@?QkWJ��J\gTTKM>=Ûg?QLPLTCQ=U�ejg�JKMO=PQN

zEYHHVY_HH

zV~YG{�YHHH z~Y|G_Y|HH zEYH{}YGG� zEYHHVY_HHJQF�yK=l=KQM?WJfŷA[�\



���������	
�������
��
������
��
��������������������������� !"#$$�%&�&'����(%�)��*����+�(��,���-%��(.',(�%�������� /0!!10111�(%�)��&����,��2����,�������'3*(�%��4�5%������'������616#0�+�(����)(���.7�,��)������������6168�9���-�(:�%&��%'��)%�����,%33�((���(%����'����(���)%���'�����-�(:�;9<=���,'.�(:�>��'3���9.'��?�(�.��(�-%�(�%&�@"!!A�B,'..��(�*�'��#1)*�C 8



����
����	
������������������������������������������������������	������������������ �!������������������������������������	��"����#������������	�$�����"������	�����%&'(��	�$�����)	����������	
�����*+������	����������������,

#

-./01230 456789�:8;<=>6? @=?AB>�:C8?=�:DEF=56=G�:8;<=>6? HE>?6D756AE>�:C8?=�:DEF=56=G�:8;<=>6?1I0J1I0K1I0L1I0M1I0N1I1I 1LO03K1I10 01IONNP I1I11 3KOMMN I1I13 01O0JP1I1P I1I1J QRSTTRTTT1I1K UVURTTT1I1L UVURTTT1I1M UVURTTT1I1N UVURTTT1I3I UVURTTT1I30 UVURTTT1I31 UVURTTT1I33 UVURTTT1I3P UVURTTT1I3J UVURTTT1I3K UVURTTT1I3L UVURTTT1I3M UVURTTT1I3N UVURTTT1IPI UVURTTT1IP0 UVURTTT

WMONJ3ONII

W00OL03O0L1

:E79?XEY:/ZH[



���������	�
�������������������������������������  ����!"##��$�%&'�(��)�*  ����!"##��$�&+%,-./.0-.1�234/-56�47�83�23439:-.32;<=>7�-66?36�4>3�87.2@<=>3.�4>3�87.2�A-55�83�-66?32@<BCD3�7E�630?9-4C�E79�4>3�87.2@ B>3�E7557A-.1�603./9-7�/66?:36;<B>3�F-4C�7E�G794�H90>/92�-66?36�4>3�87.2<IJIK�-66?/.03L�A-4>�2384�639M-03�831-..-.1�-.�IJIN<F-4C�OBPH�630?9-4C<Q66?:32�B9?3�R.439364�F764�7E�STUUV�W0?993.4�D5?6�KJ8D6X Y



����������	��
	��	����
����
��������������� !"#!$�����%&�'��(�������&��(����'��)����*+*��,���(���-����(�&.�����-/�0����(�,����'��-�����%&�'��(����*+*�����&��(1'���2�"3�#"+++����&��4�'��,1�(��,����)��5�676�&��4�'���8�����(���������'��&�9:����������%&�'��(����*+*#

!

;<=>?@A> BCDEFG�HFIJKLDM HNOPKCDKQ�HFIJKLDM RST�UKVEKMD WXYZ[Y\�]̂_X̂ à?b>c?b>d?b>e?b>f?b>g?b?b dbhbgd b ijjkjjj?b?> >hA?dh?gb b lkjjjkjjj?b?? c?>h>bg b mnjkjjj?b?A ?fehdc? b ijjkjjj?b?o ch>db b pqjkjjj?b?c rstkmtp lrkqrmkjjj?b?d sllkjjj rqskjjj?b?e sllkjjj rqskjjj?b?f sllkjjj rqskjjj?b?g sllkjjj rqskjjj?bAb sllkjjj rqskjjj?bA> sllkjjj rqskjjj?bA? sllkjjj rqskjjj?bAA sllkjjj rqskjjj?bAo sllkjjj rqskjjj?bAc sllkjjj rqskjjj?bAd sllkjjj rqskjjj?bAe sllkjjj rqskjjj?bAf sllkjjj rqskjjj?bAg sllkjjj rqskjjj?bob sllkjjj rqskjjj?bo> sllkjjj rqskjjj ulskrimkjjj

v>fhcodhbbb

v?chb>ohbbb

HDw�SNCxFNQyHSz=z{



��������	
������������������������������������������������� �!"�#�"$�%�� &'#�('")�&*&'+&%+��!&,)�")',�-�&.�/0���1234566� &'#�('")�&*&'+&%+��!&,)�&778&++-�9.$:�;6;;<31
16



����
�����	
��������������������������������
��������
	
� 
� ���
��������!�
���"���#$%&'((��
��������
	
� 
� ���
���
��)
  !�*�+�,(,,-%#

##

./012341 56789:�;9<=>?7@ ;ABC>67>D�;9<=>?7@ 56789:�;9<=>?7@ ;ABC>67>D�;9<=>?7@2E1F2E1G2E1H2E1I GEJEEE2E1K 2FIJL112E2E 2L4JIIK2E21 1H2J1I2 E2E22 G42JF12 E 1L4JKEE E2E24 2FJ4EE E 1L4JKEE E2E2L LLKJI22 E 1L4JKEE E2E2F HGHJHL1 1L4JKEE2E2G 1L4JKEE2E2H 1L4JKEE2E2I 1L4JKEE2E2K 1L4JKEE2E4E 1L4JKEE2E41 1L4JKEE2E422E442E4L2E4F2E4G2E4H2E4I2E4K2ELE2EL1 M2JELHJFFG

NO7@9P�QB8?7<R;ST;U

M2JEE1J4EE

M2JELHJFFG M2JEE1J4EE;7V�WA>=>A7B?R;XW3QYZU



����������	
�� ��

�������������� ����� ���� !�"���!#�$%"&'(��) %���������� *���� +,��-�,.&�-�/,�&�0.1&*�23* 4�5�"���)�6"��7�'���8�%� 9�%���"%�&��� ��" 7!%�5��������" :(���% ���&'(��"�" /�%���������;�� 5�85��<!��:%����=�8%�4��� $� 7!%�5�������%�=�8%�4��� $� ��������;�� 5�85��<!��9>;���?@��%" ��?@��%" ;$%��5���?@��%" ��!#�$%�)���?@��%" >:9���A��"% BCDEFDG�HIJCIKL ;$%��5���?@��%" =�" ������"����!#�$%�)���?@��%" �!�"%��$% !�����"����!#�$%�)���?@��%" ;$%��5���?@��%" ��!#�$%�)���?@��%" ;$%��5���?@��%" ��!#�$%�)���?@��%" 7!%�5�9>;���?@��%" ������� ��/�%��!" % !� &�)�!<�1����;)#�"%@��%" &�) ��.��)�M�5��$���*� N*-3�O-O�3 N*-3�O-O�3 N*�O-PO� N*-*QP-�** NRS�-PSQ N3*3-�OO N� N3*3-�OO��*S *-O*P-�SR *-O*P-�SR ***-QR� *-3�Q-�RS RS3-R*Q OO3-OSP � OO3-OSP��*Q *-��Q-��� *-��Q-��� *3�-�Q� *-3Q�-*R� RS3-QPR �**-3R� 3*�-��� 3*�-��� *PS-3R���*R *-Q�Q-S�� *-Q�Q-S�� *3Q-PRP *-�SP-SS3 RS�-O�R Q�P-�3� S�-��� S�-��� SOP-�3���*P *-QP*-�OP �R-R�O *-R��-��� ��S-SO� *-SO3-O�Q RS�-3�P QR3-�QP ��R-O** ��R-O** ��O-SSR 3-*P3-P**���� *-R3P-O�3 �Q-S�R *-RSQ-�3* *S�-3P� *-Q�*-S3S R�P-3QQ RO�-��P S�-�PS � TUUVUUU �Q-*3S �O3-RRP 33*-*�* �**-*3R +�0 3-Q��-�OR���* �-*O�-O�3 **-O�� �-*�S-RQ3 �S*-O3P *-RP�-O3O RQ�-Q3* *-��O-Q�3 *-3�S-�P� � WVUUUVUUU *��-PPO � *Q�-*R� � *-S*P-OSS +�PO-QS�0 +30 3-**�-�R3���� �-3�O-�*O 3*-3�O �-33�-R*R �P�-QRQ �-�O�-�3* R*R-�S� *-��S-OSS ��*-*�P � XYUVUUU 3S-RRP � S3�-�*� � *O3-P�� � *-33O-O*� +*�Q-POO0 +PP0 3-���-�3P���3 �-33Q-3SS RO-*Q* �-O�*-�3Q �Q�-Q*� �-*OR-R�Q RQS-�3P *-�Q�-�RR �RQ-S�� � TUUVUUU *�-*�O ��-3�� � *O3-P�� � OSP-��� R�3-�R� * 3-R��-R�����O �-3RS-�S� P�-�OP �-OQR-3�P �QR-*OS �-���-*S� RQS-�3S *-3�3-P�S �-*S� � Z[UVUUU � OOP-R�� � *O3-P�� � �PR-RRO Q��-�O� 3-�S� O-�3O-O�P���� YVTT\V[WW YVTT\V[WW Y]ZVZTZ +*0 YVW\YVZX̂ RQS-*�P WVY[XVYTU � \̂]VX]W W\V[\XVUUU *�Q-3O� WVZ[YVXXU � QSQ-QO* *O3-P�� � ZVUUWVZZY _WV[Y\VU]Ỳ �-R��-QQ����S YV\UXV̂\T YV\UXV̂\T Y][V[TZ YVYU]VWWW P�-3O� YVWŴV[[W ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU *O3-P�� YVW\̂V]UU _TUVWY]̀ �-QS�-SO3���Q YV\X]V\YX YV\X]V\YX ZUYVYU] YVYX[VZWX SQ-��S YVYUUVZWW ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU *O3-P�� YVW\̂V]UU TWVTWW �-R�Q-��O���R YVXZZV[XT YVXZZV[XT ZUXV[TY YVZY[VUYW SQ-��� YVYXUVUYW ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU *O3-P�� YVW\̂V]UU WUWVWYW �-P�R-*Q����P YVX]]VXÛ YVX]]VXÛ ZWWVZTT YVẐ V̂YXT SS-PPP YVZYWVYXX ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU *O3-P�� YVW\̂V]UU WXYVZXX 3-�Q�-�O*��3� YV[X[VU]̂ YV[X[VU]̂ ZWXVUWT YVT\WVÛT SS-PPS YVẐTVÛ^ ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU *O3-P�� YVW\̂V]UU YY\VŴ^ 3-�P�-Q�P��3* YV̂ZXVY[X YV̂ZXVY[X ZYUV[\T YV\W\V\YY SS-PPQ YVTT̂V\Y\ ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU *O3-P�� YVW\̂V]UU Ŷ]VXY\ 3-�R�-3�O��3� YV]U[VŴY YV]U[VŴY ZY\V\X\ YV\̂WVXW[ SQ-��O YV\WTVXWZ ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU YVUW\VUUU T]]VXWZ O-�RO-PSQ��33 YV][]V̂XY YV][]V̂XY ZZUVTT] YVXT]VTWZ SQ-��* YV\̂YVTWY ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU YVUW\VUUU \X[VTWY O-S��-3QR��3O ZVU\TVZ\] ZVU\TVZ\] ZZ\VTU\ YV[ŴV]\Z SQ-��� YVX\WV]\W ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU YVUW\VUUU XZXV]\W �-�RP-3�P��3� ZVWZUV[W[ ZVWZUV[W[ ZTUVTZ[ YV[]UVŶW SS-PPP YV[YZVŶY ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU YVUW\VUUU [ÛVŶY �-PPQ-S*���3S ZVYÛV]̂\ ZVYÛV]̂\ ZT\V\TZ YV̂XZVTTY SQ-��O YV[]XVTẐ ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU YVUW\VUUU [̂WVTẐ S-QQP-�����3Q ZVŶ]VYWU ZVŶ]VYWU Z\UV[YX YV]ẐVT̂T SS-PPP YV̂[WVT̂\ ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU YVUW\VUUU \̂XVT̂\ Q-S3�-�3O��3R ZVZ[WVTTU ZVZ[WVTTU Z\\V]̂[ ZVUW\VT\Z SS-PPS YV]T̂VT\[ ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU YVUW\VUUU ]ZZVT\[ R-�SR-PP*��3P ZVT\\V[YX ZVT\\V[YX ZXWVZY[ ZVU]TVZ]] SQ-��S ZVUY[VZ]Z ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU YVUW\VUUU WVUWYVZ]Z P-�R*-3R���O� ZV\TYVWW] ZV\TYVWW] ZXXV[T[ ZVW[\VZ[Z SS-PPR ZVWÛVZ[\ ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU YVUW\VUUU WVU]ZVZ[\ *�-SQO-Q�P��O* ZVXZUVX[Y ZVXZUVX[Y Z[YVYT̂ ZVY\̂VTYT SQ-��3 ZVW]WVTYW ŴWVUUU \[̂VUUU XYXVUUU YVUW\VUUU WVW[XVTYW **-R�*-*R*NSP-QQ*-�SP N3��-�RS NQ�-�QQ-*�� NQ-S*O-OP� N*�-�RS-PSQ N3*�-��� aŴV\TXVUUU NO*-�P*-��R

;((�!��)2;�% $ (�%�)�9>;���!#�$%"

N�-��*-3��

N*R-�OS-��� NR-P�3-P�� N�-�OQ-��S N�-��*-3���%��M��@��%!�+�:M2�/b0/!%�c�4%��""�7�"%�8?�$���� ���(��$��%���"��8!��

N**-Q*3-*Q� N�-�OQ-��SN��-�*O-���

defghfij�klmh �%��:�$���)+�:�&�0 �!�5"8!+�&��0 , %"�(��!��%?+�no�0



���������	
�
������������������������ !"#���$�%�&����$'()�����&��%��(��*�%�&��+(�������*���������������������, --! ,,.���$�/01� �/2�0� �/34/ �/25/�*6�&��0'������%�1�)$���(��������$�7/01�89��:�!;;�<=>9<��*��)�����&��%����$����$�?:���:!;;�����$�@�)���$�)��%�/�$��2$)��$%�����*�(���0'����������$�7/2�0�89�!";;�<=>�9<��*��)�����&��%����$����$�?:��#:,;;�����$�@�)���$�)��%�9��:A.�;;�=����$����<�����9<��*��)�����&��%����$���:A.�;;�����$�@�)���$�)��%� !,



���������	
�	�����������������
��

������  !"#$��$%&�'�"(�)*��*)+),-.$/$0�$'12��$'��0%�3'$�4�5�.$6��$ )789:7+:+;������ )7��,7<��;���������=0�$!$'��>�!0?0@' A)7)�9�������������� B���������������������������4"����.$/$0�$' )7�<978+9;������ )7��,7<��;���������>5C$0'$'1DC$!��?0@�>5C$0'$' )<97��:;��������� )A�7,++;������������ �EF$0�'��"�G?�'�C�H"�0�E�("!�I"0%$%�J$6��2$!/?�$ 9<:7)8:����������� 9<:7�)A�������������� �EF$0�'��"�H?�E�"(� "!��D!�K�!%�("!� DH>H ,7�:)���������������� ,9A7:A��������������� �EF$0�'��"�H?�E�"(� "��'6"�("!� >.H B������������������������ �7,++7+++����������� �EF$0�'��"�G?�'�C�H"�0�E�("!� LM ��A79))����������� <:<7<���������������� �EF$0�'��"� "!��"(�I!$F$!�"0�("!�HNO ��87A++����������� ��87A++��������������4"����>5C$0'$' �7<,87)::;������ �7�<�7A:�;���������HK�0@$�?0�P�0%�I���0�$ <),7+�);��������� &�7<):7),+-;��������I$@?00?0@�P�0%�I���0�$ 879+,79));������ �7,8�7�)A;���������>0%?0%�P�0%�I���0�$ �7,8+79:�;������ )79+97�<A;���������

QRQS QRQT



����������	����
��	���������������������������� � �!��"#$#!���%!��&���'()���������"��#�"��*�*�#��+%�,�"�!��%���#!���� ����'-.�#!���/.'.�/!����,��"�!���#���%�����0� ������)#*1�!���+%$$�"�� %(����������%�!�� ���2�!���3��+�,�� ����45�$#���*�#��%��+#�����4 ��



�	



���������	
��	��
��
������� ��

���� �����
���
���� !"� #$�%&�
'�()
*��+ (,�
���� ���� �����
���
���� !"� #$�%&�
'�()
*��+ (,�
����-..- /.012034






 -.56 51-.310/34



 27839-..0 /8-1-00








 87039 -.58 510.61680





 :7/89-..6 51.0/1:35





 /75/9 -.52 5165/1.23





 37:/9-..8 515.516:6





 87/09 -.5: 518.:1-8-





 27-59-..2 515/:15..





 37239 -.53 51:.:128-





 5070.9-..: 51-8218/3





 67/:9 -.5/ 51:/51-6/





 67/.9-..3 515/61.-0





 ;67/39 -.-. 5130/16-0





 -72/9-../ 51.:513:/





 ;5.7-09 -.-5 -156816-0





 527269-.5. 51.6/12.3





 ;-7.39 -.-- -10.61856





 :76-9-.55 51.83186-





 .7389 -.-0 -100:10:6





 57609-.5- 51.3318.0





 -7309 -.-6 -10321.2.





 -7.39-.50 515001:38





 67529



���������	
�
��	��
�	��
�
���������������������
��
���
������
����� �
!��"�#
$��%
&'()
��
&)���������
�$
*&'+,,
�$
����� ��
$��%
&-&(.&-/0�1 �2
3�4����
2���
���
2�5
��4�"
*&'(,,

06

789:;<=: >
?@ABCD EAFDG
ABH
IGD
JAK
LDMAND;O:P Q:R=OSRSP=;O:T UVU> :RS:WROTU;O:X TV;> :RPOXR;P;;O:U :=V=> :RXOXRTP;;O:W SVW> :RXW:R;SW;O;O ;VX> :RU=WRS;=;O;: :TVT> ;R:SPRS;=;O;; XVS> ;R=OSRP:S;O;= :VS> ;R==XR=TT;O;S ;V:> ;R=UTROTO;O;P YZ[\ Y]̂__]̀ab;O;T YZ[\ Y]̂aY]̂c̀;O;X YZ[\ Y]c_Y]b[d;O;U YZ[\ Y]caY]̀̂ a;O;W YZ[\ Y]d_̂]̂[_;O=O YZ[\ Y]dà][eb;O=: YZ[\ Y]̀̂ []a__;O=; YZ[\ Y]̀ec]dc[;O== YZ[\ Y]acb]cd_;O=S YZ[\ Y]e[a]cê;O=P YZ[\ Y]edd]̀dd;O=T YZ[\ _][Yd]b[b;O=X YZ[\ _][ad]dY_;O=U YZ[\ _]b̂a]_cc;O=W YZ[\ _]Ybb]_Y_;OSO YZ[\ _]Ỳc]ĉe;OS: YZ[\ _]_̂b][d[QTXRSSXRSTO

?@ABCD
fB
gDN
hiGfNfiB 9BHfBC7jBH
kAFABlDQ=:=RPSSSS=RSTW:WTR=U;TSWR;=PP;SRTTU =R:W=RW::P::R:=U =RXOPROSUmPWSRXT;n =R::OR;U=m:OXRWSSn =ROO;R;=WUO=RPU; =RUOPRU;;X;PROS; SRP=SRS;Wob]̀_a]b̀ep ;RXWTR;POodc]̀[bp ;RX=ORPSWY]̀ee ;RX==R=SUâ]aed ;RXU;R;SSec]e__ ;RUXUR:XTb̂_]e_c =RO;;R:::beY]eb̀ =R;:PRO;U_ad]̀ed =RTO:RU;S_̂̀]a[e SRO=WRT==âe]ad_ SRP;WRSWTĉY]eaa PROX;RSUScè]beb PRTTWRTXPdcY]cb̂ TR=;;R:UW[̀a]eda XRO=:R:PXd̀d]cdc XRXWXRX;;aYc]_ca URT;=ROUOaac]_̂b WRPOURS;O



���������	
�
��	��
�	��
�
���������������������
��
���
������
����� �
!��"�#
$��%
&'()
��
*)
��
&*&(
��+
,)
��
&*&-���������
�$
.,'/00
�$
����� ��
$��%
&*&(1&*2,�3�+��!
$ �+
��4����
+���
���
+�5
��4�"
.&'(00

,/

6789:;<9 =
>?@ABC D@ECF
@AG
HFC
I@J
KCL@MC:N9O P9Q<NRQRO<:N9S TUT= 9QR9VQNST:N9W SU:= 9QONWQ:O::N9T 9<U<= 9QWNWQSO::N9V RUV= 9QWV9Q:RV:N:N :UW= 9QT<VQR:<:N:9 9SUS= :Q9ROQR:<:N:: WUR= :Q<NRQO9R:N:< 9UR= :Q<<WQ<SS:N:R :U9= :Q<TSQNSN:N:O XYXZ [\]̂_\X_X:N:S ỲXZ [\aXb\b[̀:N:W [YcZ [\adX\̀_b:N:T [YcZ [\c]̀\b[]:N:V [YcZ [\cbc\[[̀:N<N [YcZ [\__X\̀X̀:N<9 [YcZ [\d[_\_Xa:N<: [YcZ [\dba\d_b:N<< [YcZ [\̂_a\_]̂:N<R [YcZ [\b]_\[ca:N<O [YcZ ]\XXb\__̀:N<S [YcZ ]\X̂a\bX[:N<W [YcZ ]\̀_[\X[c:N<T [YcZ ]\[à\Xdc:N<V [YcZ ]\][[\̀X[:NRN [YcZ ]\aXc\̀cc:NR9 [YcZ ]\abX\[̂aPSWQT<<Q<:9

>?@ABC
eA
fCM
ghFeMehA 8AGeAB6iAG
j@E@AkCP<9<QORRRR<QRSV9VSQ<T:SRVQ:<OO:RQSST <Q9V<QV99O99Q9<T <QWNOQNRTlOVRQWS:m <Q99NQ:T<l9NWQVRRm <QNN:Q:<VTN<QOT: <QTNOQT::W:OQNR: RQO<RQR:Vǹ\d̂c\bXXo :QWRTQO:Vǹ]̂\[]do :QS9NQ:V9ncb\̀]̂o :QOO9Q9O<ǹ\b[bo :QORVQ::Rc_\dc̀ :QSNOQVWR`̀_\bac :QW::QV9Vd̀̂\_̂^ :QVN9QSNW]̂c\b̀c <Q:TWQO:<acX\̂ ĉ <QW<TQRNWc̀d\c[a RQ:OOQV<9ĉc\̂ ]̂ RQTR9QT9R_cc\bb[ OQRVWQTNSd[d\b̀_ SQ::OQW::X̂̀\_̂^ WQN:WQR9Nd̂d\]aa WQVNRQWORbca\b_] TQTOVQW9W\̀X]a\c_a VQTVRQ:T9



���������	�
�������������������������������������  ����!"##��$�%&'(��)�*  ����!"##��$�&+%,-./.0-.1�234/-56�47�83�23439:-.32;<=>7�-66?36�4>3�87.2@<=>3.�4>3�87.2�A-55�83�-66?32@<BCD3�7E�630?9-4C�E79�4>3�87.2@ B>3�E7557A-.1�603./9-7�/66?:36;<FGH��II"�I�$J��KL�M�<NONP�-66?/.03Q�A-4>�2384�639R-03�831-..-.1�-.�NONS<T9766�U3R3.?3�V53213<W66?:32�-.439364�9/43�7E�XYPZ[\]BT̂ �D5?6�PO8D6_<U3639R3�W007?.4�̀64/85-6>32 NO



����������	��
	��	����
����
�������������������������������� �����!"#$%�&�����'�'(�)������%*����)�������+����,-./.0.12�-34�5.-678�9:;<�8-=-,8�>=-34>�-3=1�-34�?@A78�>4B41,4����)�����(��&(�����+C��D�E����)�''��������'�F!"GHII�)������������'��J�KLKMNKLGL�O�����������(���E�++�*�C�'���)���������������'���+�C�����'�KLG!�P�)�� �'(�)���+�����)�*����+�E�FK"#II

K!

QRSTUVWT XYZ[ZY\]�XQ̂ �_Ỳàb]c�def�gZbh�i[ZY�X_jSjk�̂Vl XYZ[ZY\]�XQ̂ �mno�pnqrnst�gZbh�i[ZY�X_jSjk�̂Vl uvwxwvyz�{u|}�~����w��vz����z��w�xwv�{u|}�}���U�T�U�T�U�T�U�T�U�T�U�U�U�UTU�UUU�UWU�U�U�U�U�U� �U����� ������� ������U�U� �U����� ������� ������U�U� �U����� ������� ������U�U� �U����� ������� ������U�W� �U����� ������� ������U�WT �U����� ������� ������U�WU �U����� ������� ������U�WW �U����� ������� ������U�W� �U����� ������� ������U�W� �U����� ������� ������U�W� �U����� ������� ������U�W� �U����� ������� ������U�W� �U����� ������� ������U�W� �U����� ������� ������U��� �U����� ������� ������U��T

������� �¡¢����£�¤�¥¦ �§�̈©ª£�«©�¬¥©

®UW��T�����

j̄ ]ban�̀b�mnt�XZs̀t̀Zb Sbh̀baQrbh�g]c]b°n®WTW������W����T���W�U����UW��U����� W�T�W��TT�TT�TW� W��������i������Uk W�TT��U�WiT������k W���U�UW���W���U W������UU�U����U ���W���U�±�²���²���³ U�����T��±���²���³ U��������±���²���³ U��UW����±��²���³ U�WWT����±��²���³ U�W���T����²��� U�WWU������²��� U��U��������²��� U��W��������²��� W�T�����W���²��� W���U��TT���²��� ������������²��� �������U����²��� ��WT���U����²��� ������������²��� ������������²��� ����������²���²��� T��W�T��U�



���������	
������	�����������	���������������������������� �!����"���!�#��� �������$���%!��%�����������%�&�'�(� %���������������������% ����!�#�)�)������*� ������% ��+,�������%�� �*%��!���!�,�!$%� ��������%�� ���+"���!�*��"����%� +�-$����(�� �* ���$�%��$���!$� %-,����)&�.�/���������0%���1����������1������2��(��  �����3%���������'�!� %!����4���5������%6����7���!��%��4�89:8�"���%��2$%� ���$���7'����5�����$���!��"������%!������������� ��%���!!�������*���%���$����/��!����������+�#�%!�!�%������!���������  ��+��%!�!&�;�%-�����$����*���������+�%���$�������+���/��!������$���7'��%��!!����$��*%��!�'� �+�����!!�������*��'�*��!��(����-�  �*���%"���!!����%���!$%���������%��%����"��7���!��$���-�����8��������%�*�����������*��!�(����%���%(�������%����*���%��%��$�����������,�����������$���"%�����%�*���!!���) <<



��



Port Orchard 
Community Event Center

Mayor Rob Putaansuu
February 24, 2025







Community Event 
Center (CEC) 
Updates

CEC Shoreline Permits 
Approved (December 11, 
2024)

Shoreline Conditional Use Permit
Shoreline Substantial 
Development Permit

US Army Corps Permits
Addressing Comments Received 
January 16, 2025
Decision expected summer 2025

Hydraulic Project 
Approval (HPA)

Decision expected concurrent 
with US Army Corps Approval

RCO Grants
Plaza Phase 1 Grant: $500,000 
under contract
Plaza Phase 2 Grant: $500,000 
awaiting approval of state 
contract





RCO Grants –
Aquatic Lands 

Enhancement Account

• Waterfront Plaza Phase 1
• WWRP 22-1648: 

$500,000
• Waterfront Plaza Phase 2

• WWRP 24-1780: 
$500,000



Plaza Phase 
1 Amenities
• Overwater Structure
• Pedestrian Pathway
• Shoreline Restoration



Plaza Phase 
2 Amenities
• Parking Area
• Pedestrian Pathway
• Stage
• Seating Walls
• Rain Gardens
• Hardscape Surfaces



Bay Street 
Reconstruction

• 60% Design Complete, 
proceeding to 90%.

• WSDOT Approval of 
Speed Limit Reduction 
to 20 MPH

• WSDOT Approval of 60% 
Geometry







Kitsap Bank 
Update
• Shoreline Substantial 

Development Permit Approved
• Building Permit Application 

Submitted and Under Review
• Land Disturbing Activity Permit 

Submitted and Under Review



Project Timeline

Bay Street Project: 

• Construction 
Bidding:  End of 
2025

• Construction Start: 
May 2026

Kitsap Bank 
Construction

• Construction Start 
Spring of 2026

Community Event 
Center Construction

• Construction 
Bidding: Q1 2027

• May be delayed to 
accommodate 
Kitsap Bank

Plaza Bidding

• Concurrent with 
Community Event 
Center



Port of Bremerton

Presentation to

Kitsap Public Facilities District

February 24, 2025



GARAGES, 
PADDOCK, PIT AREA

REGIONAL 
EVENT AREA

Small Outdoor 
Amphitheater

& Fanzone

HOTEL
Condos

CONDOMINIUM
S

Project Master Plan



Welcome to Port of Bremerton



Overview

• Formed in 1913

• Has created approximately 2,436 jobs in 

Kitsap County

• Has 75 business tenants

• Has 82 hangars and 793 slips

2/20/2025 4



Our Commitment to CNW

• The Port of Bremerton has entered a long-term lease of the 
232-acre property with CNW, to September 30, 2066

• In July 2024, the Port affirmed its lease commitment by 
extending the funding requirement

• The Port entered into an agreement in 2023 to provide 
$11,679,520 of funds to CNW to cover a portion of the 
infrastructure costs of the project

• The Port of Bremerton has provided a support letter to CNW 
to fully support all efforts to obtain the necessary permits for 
the project

2/20/2025 5



CNW Leased Project Site

2/20/2025 6



Why Are We Here?

• We are here today to provide an update of the CNW Project to the KPFD

• The Port of Bremerton is committed to the successful capitalization and 

construction of the multi-purpose entertainment facility to be constructed 

across the road from the Bremerton National Airport by Mortenson 

Construction for Circuit of the Northwest (“CNW”) under a Project Labor 

Agreement between Mortenson and Olympic Peninsula Building 

Construction Trades Unions and the Western States Carpenters and the 

Craft Unions & District Councils

• This presentation highlights our commitment to the success of our tenant, 

updates the status of the project and provides details of our request

2/20/2025 7



Michael Harder

2/20/2025 8

• Vice President and General Manager, Mortenson Seattle

• Joined Mortenson in 1994

• Responsible for managing all projects in the Pacific Northwest

• Under Michael’s leadership, Mortenson completed the Climate 
Pledge Area, on time and on budget, during the pandemic



Project General Contractor

2/20/2025 9

• Family owned since 1954

• 30+ years in construction of multi-purpose facilities for sports and 
entertainment

• Over 40 years in the Puget Sound

• Top Corporate Citizen – Environmental Category

• Washington’s best places to work

• Consistently complete projects on budget and on time or early



Chuck Moe

2/20/2025 10

• LiUNA President, Laborers’ Local 252 Tacoma

• Kitsap Country Central Labor Council AFL-CIO

• Washington State Building & Construction Trades Council
President Olympic Peninsula

• Resident of Silverdale

• Laborers International Union of North America

• Dedicated to economic investment on the Kitsap Peninsula



Project Labor Agreement

2/20/2025 11



Let’s Put Kitsap to Work

979 NEW JOBS
$3.5 Billion in New Spending
$1.5 Billion in New Earnings

$56.5 Million in New Sales Taxes
Source:  Feasibility Study Table 7-4, total over 30-year period

2/20/2025 12



ECONOMIC 
IMPACT TO 
THE LOCAL 
ECONOMY

• Construction Spending

• Event Spending

New Spending

• Employees 

• Construction Workers

New Earnings

New Full-Time Equivalent Jobs (FTE’s)

New Businesses

• Sales Taxes

• Property Taxes

• Leasehold Excise Tax

New Taxes

2/20/2025 13



James Towne

2/20/2025 14

• Managing Director, Hilltop Securities

• San Diego, CA

• 37 years experience in debt capital markets

•  Responsible for structuring senior debt for the Port/CNW project



2/20/2025 15

• Subsidiary of Hilltop Holdings which also owns 
• Prime Lending (mortgage lender with offices in Silverdale) 
• Plains Capital Bank

• $15.9 Billion in assets

• Hilltop Securities served as municipal underwriter or advisor on 
4,581 transactions totaling $232 billion from 2020 through 2024

• On average, 18 issues per week totaling $894 million per week

• No. 5 ranked national municipal investment bank on a combined 
basis from 2020-2024 according to Ipreo municipal analytics

Hilltop Securities



Project Summary Update

• Selected Mortenson as Design Builder
• Constructed Climate Pledge Arena, Top National contractor for entertainment and sports

• Secured equity contribution

• Execution of a Project Labor Agreement with Local Unions to protect 
local jobs and maintain a strike-free construction process

• Selection of ASM Global/Legends as Event Manager
• 20-year agreement with an option to extend an additional 20 years

• International sanctioning body commitment to hold events at the 
facility for 5 years

2/20/2025 16



SUMMARY OF ECONOMIC IMPACT

   

2/20/2025 17

Net New FTE Jobs Actual Created

  From Direct 601                     

  From Indirect 244                     

  From Induced 134                     

TOTAL Net New FTE Jobs 979                     

Thirty (30) Year Impacts - Circuit of the Northwest as presented by the feasibility report

Net New Spending Over 30 Years Average Per Year

  Direct Spending $2,201,000,000 $73,366,667

  Indirect Spending $867,000,000 $28,900,000

  Induced Spending $469,000,000 $15,633,333

TOTAL New Spending $3,537,000,000 $117,900,000

Net New Earnings Over 30 Years Average Per Year

  From Direct $1,025,000,000 $34,166,667

  From Indirect $287,000,000 $9,566,667

  From Induced $186,000,000 $6,200,000

TOTAL New Earnings $1,498,000,000 $49,933,333

Total New Spending and New Earnings $5,035,000,000 $167,833,333

Development Cost

  Labor $137,000,000

  Materials $91,000,000

Total $228,000,000

% Labor in County 15%

% Materials in County 25%

Sales Taxes Generated during construction $21,660,000

Construction Impacts

This information was prepared by the independent 

feasibility consultant, Hunden Partners in 2023. 



Regional Center – Port Owned

2/20/2025 18

Regional Center
Total Estimated Cost $20,501,380

Amount Requested from KPFD (50%) $10,250,690



Funding Summary for Regional Center

• Prior KPFD funding from public sales tax rebate funds:

• Phase 1:       $60,000 Original Feasibility

• Phase 2:       502,300 Preliminary Regional Center Design

• Phase 3:    1,439,000 Final Regional Center Design

• Total $2,001,300

• Port Request does not require any future issuance of bonds by KPFD

• Port Funding request is half of the total cost of the Regional Center 

($10,250,690 of $20,501,380 cost)

• If the Sales Tax Rebate does not get extended beyond 2041, CNW, 

through payments to the Port, is willing to pay back the KPFD after 

stabilization of the project

2/20/2025 19



Preferred Equity Dividend

Circuit of the Northwest MULTI-PURPOSE Entertainment Complex
Waterfall Flow of Funds – Post Closing

2/20/2025 20

CNW Revenues

Trustee Held Revenue Fund

CNW Budgeted Monthly Operations CNW Operating Fund

Lease Payment

CNW Senior Debt Principal and Interest

Debt Service Reserve Replenishment

Surplus Fund

Operating Reserve

Repair and Replacement Fund

Working Capital Reserve

Preferred Equity Redemption Common Stock Distribution

Special Redemption Senior Bonds

Subordinate Debt



Project Timing

2/20/2025 21

CNW Design & Construction Schedule Summary

Task Start Date

Duration

(Calender 

Days) End Date
EPC Contractor Notice to Proceed 2/13/2025 1 2/14/2025
Permitting and Environmental 3/24/2025 212 10/22/2025
Design 3/8/2025 212 10/6/2025
Procurement 3/8/2025 130 7/16/2025
Construction 6/1/2025 625 2/16/2027

Site Preparation 8/1/2025 384 8/20/2026
Earthwork 8/1/2025 120 11/29/2025
Drainage 8/1/2025 120 11/29/2025
Facility Pads 8/1/2025 120 11/29/2025
Roadways 8/25/2025 200 3/13/2026
Track Construction 8/25/2025 360 8/20/2026

Utilities 5/26/2025 381 6/11/2026
Water 9/1/2025 150 1/29/2026
Sewer 9/1/2025 150 1/29/2026
Joint Utiity Trench 10/1/2025 75 12/15/2025
Illumination 11/1/2025 240 6/29/2026

Buildings 4/30/2025 638 1/28/2027
Amenity Buildings 10/29/2025 270 7/26/2026
Condos & Corporate Suites Phase 1 10/29/2025 270 7/26/2026
Condos & Corporate Suites Phase 2 8/25/2026 300 6/21/2027
Facilities 10/29/2025 250 7/6/2026
Hotels 10/1/2025 360 9/26/2026
Stages and Theaters 10/1/2025 150 2/28/2026

Landscaping 3/1/2026 120 6/29/2026
Final Completion 8/1/2026
Facility Soft Opening 9/1/2026

Grand Opening 3/15/2027



THANK YOU

2/20/2025 22



Appendix A – Project Information

2/20/2025
23



Project Funding Update

2/20/2025 24

• Financing for 100% of project costs expected Q2 2025
• All committed capital to be delivered at financial close, held by 

Trustee Bank and secured by a Trust Indenture

Range of Funding Amounts

Senior Debt $163,000,000 $150,000,000 Hilltop Securities best efforts Senior Debt Placement 

Subordinate Debt $50,000,000 $60,000,000 in discussion 

Event Manager Preferred Equity $2,000,000 $5,000,000 in discussion 

Port of Bremerton Infrastructure Contribution $12,000,000 $12,000,000 board resolution

Membershop Sales Prior to Financial Close $5,965,000 $5,965,000 estimated, $4 million committed

CNW Shareholder Equity $3,000,000 $3,000,000 ongoing, total contributed to date by ownership

Pre-Development Equity - KPFD $2,062,000 $2,062,000 Regional Center pre-development costs

Additional Funding Request - KPFD $10,250,000 $10,250,000 requested today

$248,277,000 $248,277,000

Senior Debt 65.65% $163,000,000 $150,000,000 60.42% (target 60%)

Subordinate Debt/Equity 34.35% $85,277,000 $98,277,000 39.58%

100.00% $248,277,000 $248,277,000 100.00%



BREMERTON NATIONAL 

AIRPORT

• Located directly across highway from CNW

• 6,000’ x 150’ runway

• Accommodates all general aviation and jet 

aircraft

• FBO services on the field from Avian Flight 

Center, including flight instruction, aircraft 

rentals, pilot store, corporate services and 

refueling.

• Aircraft maintenance, repair, engine 

overhauls and part sales.

• Credit card operated 24-hour self-fueling 

facility.

• Pilot lounge open 24/7

• Terminal Area Forecast (TAF)

• Continuous Automated Weather Observation 

System (AWOS III)

• Free Wi-Fi 

• Hangars available for rent or purchase

TRACK SITE

2/20/2025 25



THE 
COMPANY

Owner & Founding Member

Brian Nilsen

Owner, COO, Director of Motorsports

Joel Cohen

Executive VP & Chief Motorsports Officer

Andy Vertrees

Vice President of Sales

Todd Melfi

Chief Engineering Officer & Director of Motorsports Design

Andy Gerdom

Chief Information Officer

Tim Duncan

Over 30+ years of motorsports industry 
experience in design, facility operations, 

capital financing, scheduling, community & 
public relations, contract negotiations, and 

more. Have worked on over 25 tracks.

Director of Sales

Daniella Lewis

2/20/2025 26



LOCAL CORPORATIONS PROVIDE OPPORTUNITIES FOR EVENTS 
AND SPONSORSHIP

2/20/2025
27



Public Partner Summaries 

• Port of Bremerton, Washington (the “Port”)

The Port is a municipal corporation of the State of Washington and was incorporated and operates under provisions of 
Chapter 53 RCW, with RCW 53.04 and RCW 53.08 generally describing the formation and powers of the State ports.  
The Port is providing a long-term land lease to CNW that extends to September 2056 and  approximately $12,000,000 
to pay for the costs of site infrastructure.  The Port is the largest of 12 port districts located in Kitsap County, 
Washington (the “County”), with its boundaries covering much of the southern half of the County.  Port operations 
include two boat marinas, a general aviation airport, an industrial park and several recreational facilities located in the 
County.  The City of Port Orchard and most of the City of Bremerton are in the Port boundaries.

• Kitsap Public Facilities District (the “KPFD”)

The KPFD is an independent municipal corporation managing Washington State sales tax rebate funds allocated to 
Kitsap County.  The seven-member board of directors are appointed by the Kitsap County Commissioners.  The KPFD 
will receive sales tax rebate funds from the State through 2041. In mid-2019, the KPFD entered into an interlocal 
government agreement with the Port of Bremerton to provide support for the Project. Two additional ILA’s have been 
entered into since the original ILA.  To date, the KPFD has provided over $2 million in funds used for pre-development 
expenses, including completing the design of the Project.

2/20/2025 28



Public Partner Summaries 

• Kitsap County, Washington (the “County”)

Kitsap County is located in the U.S. state of Washington. As of the 2020 census, its population was 
275,611. Its county seat is Port Orchard, and its largest city is Bremerton.  The Board of Commissioners is 
the governing body of Kitsap County. There are three members of the Board, and each represents one 
of three geographical districts. Commissioners work to ensure the delivery of services and programs 
essential to the continued prosperity of Kitsap County and its citizens.

• The City of Bremerton, Washington (the “City”)

The City of Bremerton, Washington is a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under and by 
virtue of the laws of the State of Washington. Bremerton is a city in Kitsap County, Washington. The 
population was 43,505 at the 2020 census and an estimated 44,122 in 2021, making it the largest city on 
the Kitsap Peninsula. Bremerton is home to Puget Sound Naval Shipyard and the Bremerton Annex of 
Naval Base Kitsap.  

2/20/2025 29



Private Partner Summary – Owner’s Representative 

• The Joel Cohen Group, LLC

The Joel Cohen Group, LLC has expertise in sports and entertainment management and is serving as Owner’s Representative on behalf of CNW. Through 
a growth-oriented strategy, a proven track record has been accomplished from 36 years of sports and entertainment management services.   The 
following is a list of some of our prior projects:

Planning and Design - Includes development of tracks and renovation of facilities:
Speedway Planning and Design

• Kentucky Speedway
• Mississippi Band of Choctaw Indians
• California Speedway 
• Iowa Speedway 
• Pacific Northwest Motorsports Park
• Bluegrass Motorsports Park
• Lake Erie Speedway
• Lawrenceburg Speedway
• Las Vegas Motor Speedway 
• Riverside Motorsports Park 
• Pikes Peak International Raceway 
• Mansfield Speedway & Drag Strip
• Monroe Speedway
• Kern County Speedway

Management - Includes the management of tracks and facilities together with 
promotion of events:

• Louisville Speedway 
• Iowa Speedway 
• Kentucky Speedway
• Charlestown Motor Speedway
• Bluegrass Motorsports Park
• Indianapolis Speedrome
• Muncie Motor Speedway

We understand with any project we must involve family entertainment but also stand out as a unique, memorable and 
exciting experience. Our team has studied, conceptualized, designed,  and implemented extensive mixed-use 
development projects throughout North America.  We understand the concept of destination  entertainment facilities 
and the wide variety of entertainment needs that they demand.  Our process will analyze the speedway and the 
surrounding areas to recommend development strategies that will compliment the existing  entertainment offerings 
and deliver the highest and best use for the development..  

Our professionals bring influence in racing, sports, retail, and entertainment.  We bring influence and knowledge with 
motorsports sanctioning bodies. We bring influence and knowledge with advertising and promotion groups.  Our team 
has the expertise and knowledge to not only analyze existing motorsport operations but also to implement a plan to 
achieve the highest and best use for the land.

2/20/2025 30



Private Partner Summary – General Contractor 

Mortenson Construction – family owned since 1954

30+ years  in the sports & entertainment construction business and ranked in the top 2 for over a decade by ENR

Constructed over $15 billion in sports and entertainment related projects with over 230 venues in the United States

Built 2 of the last 4 newly constructed NFL Stadiums

Renovated 160 sports and entertainment related projects totaling over $2 billion

Strong presence in the Pacific Northwest with over $1 billion in regional sports & entertainment projects and over 40 years serving the Puget Sound 
area

Names 2023 Washington’s best places to work & 70% of our business is from repeat customers

Subcontractors for the CNW project include:

Architectural:  McGranahan Architects -  Servicing Western Washington since 1968  
  for architectural projects ranging in size from $250k to $125 million

Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing & Fire Protection:  McKinstry -  National leader in designing, constructing, operating, 
   and maintaining high performing buildings, since 1960

Civil:  AHBL – Engineering and Design firm headquartered in Tacoma, WA founded in 1969
2/20/2025 31



Private Partner Summary - Sponsorships 
• Toyota (Western Washington Toyota Dealers Advertising Association, Inc.)
 “Official Vehicle of the Circuit of the Northwest”
Toyota Motor Corporation is a Japanese multinational automotive manufacturer headquartered in Toyota City, Aichi, Japan. It was founded by Kiichiro Toyoda 
and incorporated on August 28, 1937. Toyota is one of the largest automobile manufacturers in the world, producing about 10 million vehicles per year. 
Western Washington Toyota Dealers Advertising Association is located in Burien, Washington, and was founded in 1987.  The Association is responsible for 
advertising within the pacific northwest region.  

• Pepsi (PepsiCo Beverage Sales, LLC)
 “Official Non-Alcoholic Beverage Supplier of the Circuit of the Northwest”
PepsiCo, Inc. is an American multinational food, snack, and beverage corporation headquartered in Harrison, New York, in the hamlet of Purchase. PepsiCo's 
business encompasses all aspects of the food and beverage market. It oversees the manufacturing, distribution, and marketing of its products.  PepsiCo 
Beverage Sales, LLC is a subsidiary of PepsiCo and is responsible for contracting for beverage sales and beverage sponsorships nationwide.

• Honda Powersports – “Official Powersports Partner of the Circuit of the Northwest”
Honda Powersports manufactures motorcycles, ATVs, side-by-sides, and scooters using the latest technology and innovation.  Honda also
manufactures automobiles, garden equipment, marine engines, personal watercraft, power generators, and many other products.  Honda is 
also involved in artificial intelligence and robotics.

• Seattle Sports Commission
The Greater Seattle Region is a world-class sports market that is home to major league sports teams and host to premier sporting events that contribute 
positively and inclusively to our economy, community and quality of life. The Seattle Sports Commission (SSC) serves to connect and activate the sports industry 
around inclusive, equitable access to sports in the Greater Seattle region. From youth to amateur to professional, and from athletes to spectators to sponsors, 
we aim to set the standard for what a vibrant sports landscape looks like.

2/20/2025 32



MAJOR GLOBAL 
AND NATIONAL 
MOTORSPORTS 

EVENTS

2/20/2025
33



Live Entertainment
• Two (2) separate venues
• 30,000 total capacity 

(20,000 & 10,000)
• 1,000 covered seating area for VIP’s in front 

of stage
• Corporate VIP loge boxes adjacent to stage
• Permanent concession and restroom 

building

2/20/2025 34



Live Entertainment – Small 
Outdoor Amphitheater & 

Event Space

• Outdoor mixed use event space

• Ability to accommodate up to 4,000 
people

• Corporate Events for stand alone events, 
or during sanctioned motorsports 
weekends

• Community Events

• Festivals

2/20/2025 35



Condominiums

• Premium track facing 
storage units for Founding 
Members

• Ultra luxury storage  & 
entertaining option

• Varying size choices; 
30’x40’, 60’x40’, 90’x40’

• Aesthetically designed 
exterior

• Custom designed and 
built to suit

2/20/2025 36



PRE-CONSTRUCTION

➢Facility Program Development

➢Design Review

➢Benchmark Analysis

➢Financial Forecasting

➢Media/Public Relations

➢Stakeholder Engagement

PRE- OPENING

➢Budget Preparation

➢Manpower Planning

➢Operations Development

➢FF&E Procurement

➢Management Systems

➢Facility Commissioning

➢Marketing & Sales

MANAGEMENT

➢Maintenance & Engineering

➢Event Marketing & Services

➢Booking & Event Solicitation

➢Finance & Accounting

➢Labor Relations

➢Parking

➢Box Office Operation

➢Sponsorship & Advertising

➢Food & Beverage Operations

OVERVIEW OF SERVICES

2/20/2025 37



III - PRECONSTRUCTION SERVICES

SOLICIT A NAMING RIGHTS PARTNER & BUILD

ENTERTAINMENT BRAND IDENTITY

ASM Global will exclusively represent 

CNW:

• Maximize revenues from ticket sales and

ancillary revenues streams

• Drive private event sales through development

of high- end marketing collateral

• Create engaging content to drive social media 

followings and increase brand exposure

• Assist promoters through in-house advertising, 

promotions and event marketing

• Brand development

• Public and media relations

• Industry awareness and advertising

2/20/2025 38



2/20/2025 39



2/20/2025 40



2/20/2025 41



•

•

•

2/20/2025 42



MAINTENANCE 
AND REPAIR

• Adherence to environmental and conservation goals and programs

• Coordination and oversight of subcontractors and show labor

• Coordination of top-quality parking services

• Coordination with the requirements of the city

• Event/game day operational staffing

• Event management

• Event set-up and teardown

• Pre-event/game preparation

• Safety and emergency responsiveness

• Security and crowd management

• Standardized and custom designed operating procedures

• Utility service delivery and collection2/20/2025 43



2/20/2025 44



Appendix B – Port of Bremerton

2/20/2025
45



Board of Commissioners

Term: Jan. 1, 2024 - Dec. 31, 
2029
District 3: Portions of South 
Kitsap, Southwest Bremerton, 
Seabeck/Holly/Crosby

Term: Jan. 1, 2020 - Dec. 31, 
2025
District 2: Downtown Port 
Orchard, portions of 
Eastern South Kitsap

Term: Jan. 1, 2022 - Dec. 31, 
2027
District 1: West Bremerton, 
portions of East Bremerton, 
Kitsap Lake and Chico

Gary Anderson
President

Axel Strakeljahn
Secretary

Cary Bozeman
Vice President

2/20/2025 46



Facilities

Bremerton National Airport

Olympic View Industrial Park

Bremerton Marina

Port Orchard Marina

• Longest runway on Kitsap 

Peninsula - 6200 feet

• Fueling facility

• 3,700 acres

• Located directly next to the 

WA State Ferry terminal

• Partnership with nonprofit 

USS Turner Joy

• Covered slips available

• Fuel dock

2/20/2025 47



Total Port Impact

2/20/2025
48



WPPA Job Creator of the Year
2016 2022

Port tenants 37 72

# of tenant employees 982 2633

2/20/2025
49



South Hangar Project

2/20/2025 50



Airport Industrial Way Extension

 Airport Industrial Way Extension

2/20/2025
51



Sky Park

2/20/2025 52



Amelia's Hangar

2/20/2025 53



Puget Sound Industrial Center

2/20/2025
54



SR Hwy 3 Frontage Development

2/20/2025
55



NE Campus – Startup 

2/20/2025
56



NOTICE TO THE 
RECIPIENT / DISCLAIMER

• The  materials and statements contained in this Presentation do not 
constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of any offer to buy any 
securities of CNW to any person in any jurisdiction, nor shall there 
be any sale of securities in any jurisdiction in which such offer, 
solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to registration or 
qualification for exemption from registration under the securities 
laws of such jurisdiction.  

• This Presentation may contain statements that, to the extent they 
are not recitations of historical fact, may constitute “forward-
looking statements.”  In this respect, the words “estimate,” 
“project,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “intend,” “believe” and similar 
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements.  
Any such, statements are subject to a variety of risks and 
uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially 
from those that have been projected.  Such risks and uncertainties 
which could affect the revenues and obligations of CNW include, 
among others, changes in economic conditions, limited resources of 
CNW and various other events, conditions and circumstances, many 
of which are beyond the control of CNW.  Such forward-looking 
statements speak only as of the date of the presentation.  CNW 
disclaims any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any 
updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement contained in 
this Presentation to reflect any changes in CNW’s expectations with 
regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances 
on which any such statement is based.

2/20/2025 57


	Board of Directors Meeting
	MEETING AGENDA

	Community Center KPFD Presentation Feb 2025.pdf
	Port Orchard �Community Event Center
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Community Event Center (CEC) Updates
	Slide Number 5
	RCO Grants – �Aquatic Lands �Enhancement Account
	Plaza Phase 1 Amenities
	Plaza Phase 2 Amenities
	Bay Street Reconstruction
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Kitsap Bank Update
	Project Timeline

	JAN 2025 KPFD Sales Tax Rebate Report.pdf
	KPFD Sales Tax Rebate Report�JAN 2025

	FEB 2025 Project Invoice Tracking Report.pdf
	KPFD Project Invoice Tracking Report�FEB 2025




